Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) Finding Aid

August 2007

Acknowledgements

We wish to acknowledge the support and contributions of the following individuals who helped to organize and preserve the Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) collection. Through their efforts, the collection is now accessible to the public at large:

- Council President David Bragdon and members of the Metro Council
- Michael Jordan, Chief Operating Office, Metro
- Gregory Gross, Metro Council Office intern
- Professors Bill Lang and Katy Barber, Department of History, Portland State University
- 2005 PSU Practicum Students: Joyce Bates, Charles Baxter, Libby Coyner, Daniel Logghe, Maurice Miller, Christina Overturf, Renee Ziemann
- 2006 PSU Practicum Students: Cassandra Chang, Heather James, John McBarron, Marianne Ryder

Summary Information

Repository Metro Archives and Special Collections

Creator Gregory Gross, Metro Council Office intern

Title Guide to the Columbia Region Association of Governments

(CRAG) Collection

Date [inclusive] 1953 -1986

Extent 22.5 Linear feet of paper records; also includes a small collection

of recordings (audio cassette tapes) which have not been

digitized.

Condition The paper records are in very good condition.

Language English

Abstract This collection documents the work of the Columbia Region

Association of Governments (CRAG) from its founding and early days in 1966 to its merger with the Metropolitan Service District

(MSD) on January 1, 1979.

Preferred Citation

Metro Archives and Special Collections: Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) Collection, 1953 -1986

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction: A Brief History of CRAG	
Chronology of CRAG	
Summary Collection Description	g
Box Numbers and Descriptions	10
Collection Divisions and Subdivisions	11
Collection Division 1: Meeting Records	11
Collection Division 2: General Materials	2 3
Collection Division 3: Specific Issues and Responsibilities	25
Appendix A: Glossary of Acronyms	36
Appendix B: Library of Congress Subject Headings	37
Appendix C: Sources for Background Information	38

Introduction: A Brief History of CRAG

The Portland region enjoys a unique status as a center of strong regional planning and coordination. The robustness of Metro as a regional government at the beginning of the twenty-first century bears witness to that reputation. Yet the road to Portland's current regional government structure was by no means a smooth one. Given the relatively weak state of regional planning and coordination in the Portland area during the 1950s, 1960s, and 1970s, what was the role of the Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) in the rise of Portland as a national model of regional government?

Precursors

One can trace the roots of planning in the Portland metropolitan area back to the mid-1920s, when the State of Oregon commissioned a study of the structure of local government. In 1926, it published its recommendations chief of which was the consolidation of the City of Portland and Multnomah County. The state legislature proceeded simply to ignore it. With the economic revival that occurred during World War II and the problems that went with such growth, the state responded by authorizing county planning commissions and county-level zoning to complement municipal planning powers. Moreover, the state's creation of three significant agencies—the Joint Legislative Interim Committee on Local Government (1956); the 4-member Metropolitan Planning Commission (1957-1966), and the Portland-Vancouver Metropolitan Transportation Study (1959-1967)—marked significant leaps toward a more systematic approach to regional planning and coordination. Still, problems persisted into the early 1960s, at which point the hodgepodge of special service districts and planning agencies that had emerged in the past two decades had increased substantially in number to the point where genuinely effective regional coordination seemed less of a reality.

While suburbanites were engaged in incorporating new municipalities as a measure to counteract annexation by the central city, progressive good government proponents and business organizations were calling for efficiency, accountability, and systematic study of metropolitan problems and organization by professional experts. Responding to such calls, the Oregon state legislature in 1961 created the Interim Committee on Local Government Problems, which, in turn, recommended the creation of the Portland Metropolitan Study Commission (PMSC). Operating between 1964 and 1971, the PMSC brought about some of the deepest changes to the structure of government in the Portland region. Coupled with the establishment of this commission—or perhaps a deeper cause that helped bring it about—profound changes in public attitudes regarding suburbanization helped bring about a widespread commitment to sound regional government. First deploring the dreary and generic development of suburbs before coming to view sprawl as a disaster for the natural environment, the public during the late 1960s and early 1970s played a significant role in realizing strong regional government in the Portland metropolitan area.

Formation

In spite of the widespread success that proponents of regional government experienced on multiple levels during the late 1960s, discontent was never far from the horizon. With their growing populations—and with their increasingly urgent demands for better coordination of planning and

services—suburbs in the Portland area chafed at what they characterized as the inattention of the Metropolitan Planning Commission, a four-member body made up of one representative from the City of Portland and one from Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas counties. Encouraged by the success of the Salem-area council of governments, the PMSC responded in 1965 began to research whether a similar arrangement was possible in Portland. As further catalyst, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in 1966 mandated that every metropolitan area in the United States establish and maintain some form of representation for 90% of its residents if that area was to qualify for HUD grants. Additionally, the U.S. Department of Transportation required some form of regional government in order for states to receive federal highway funding. As a consequence, most metropolitan regions of the country turned to the council of governments model. Portland was no exception.

With the backing and guidance of the PMSC—and with the sometimes reluctant support of suburban governments who would not have entered into a regional government agreement had federal regulations not required such an entity—representatives of the various city and county governments in Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas counties met in February 1966 to discuss the formation of a regional council of governments. Later that spring and summer, a PMSC-appointed committee drafted bylaws and a stock-language membership agreement for a regional agency. Representatives of Portland area governments accepted the work of the drafting committee in July 1966 and agreed to the creation of the Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) in October of that year.

Key to ameliorating suburban concerns over the old Metropolitan Planning Commission, which CRAG absorbed upon its creation, the CRAG Constitution provided for direct representation of all participating municipalities and county governments in a General Assembly. Furthermore, the Constitution specified that each city and county delegation appoint one member to the Executive Committee, which was alternately called the Executive Board and the Board of Directors at various stages in time and which ostensibly carried out the policy directives of the General Assembly. Additionally, the CRAG Constitution stipulated the Executive Committee's appointment of an Executive Secretary, alternately called the Executive Director, and the hiring of staff members as the Committee saw fit. Finally, the Constitution outlined the annual financial contribution of member governments according to the proportion of population that a particular member represented relative to the total population represented by all member governments.

Although the CRAG constitution gave the General Assembly the responsibility of formulating policy, most individuals who represented their respective governments on this body were part-time officials who spent most of their already limited time attending to local issues. Few had an interest in dedicating time to regional concerns. Given these circumstances, CRAG's Executive Committee operated largely as the *de facto* center of power in CRAG. Meeting much more frequently than the General Assembly and composed of individuals who were more often stronger proponents of regional government than one might have otherwise found on the General Assembly, the Executive Committee had closer contact with day-to-day issues and those inside and outside the agency who dealt with them, technical research reports, staff work, and emerging points of regional concern. What is more, a host of committees including the Advisory Committee, the Transportation

Technical Advisory Committee, and a wide variety of other groups emerged throughout CRAG's lifespan and exercised significant power in guiding the policymaking and actions of the agency. The most important and visible issues under CRAG's management included comprehensive planning, land use planning, and transportation. Other areas included criminal justice, parks and recreation, fresh and wastewater, solid waste, pollution, and energy production and consumption. (For more on specific areas of concern with which CRAG engaged, see descriptive summaries for each section in Collection Divisions and Subdivisions listings.)

Decline

Seemingly from the outset, CRAG suffered numerous problems. In general, the agency's weakness stemmed largely from its advisory role to member governments. In its capacity as regional advisor, CRAG did not have the authority to implement its planning and recommendations. The agency's weakness manifested itself in two particularly notable ways: (1) conflicts of interest between local municipalities and regional government and (2) funding. First, since members of the General Assembly and the Executive Committee were representatives first and foremost of their municipal or county governments, many remained loyal to the interests of their "home" government agencies and thus ignored proposals that would have benefited the region as a whole at the expense of particular local interests. Compounding this problem, elected offices in the suburbs were most often part-time positions that their occupants held in addition to pursuing their own careers. Many suburban members of CRAG simply had neither the inclination nor the time to devote to regional issues. As a consequence, consensus over regional solutions often eluded members of CRAG. Related to the problem of conflicting interests were difficulties over stable funding. Since CRAG was dependent upon the contributions of member city and county governments, it could not afford to alienate those members by pursuing a robust program of regional initiatives at the expense of local interests. In addition, since the City of Portland had the largest population proportional to the population of CRAG's entire jurisdiction, it bore much of the responsibility of funding CRAG, compelling the suburban government to ignore CRAG all the more.

In an attempt to solve some of these problems, the Oregon state legislature mandated CRAG membership for all city and county governments within CRAG's jurisdiction by April 1974. While this measure may have stabilized CRAG's funding by means of those dues that came from its now obligatory membership base, it also exacerbated worries about the City of Portland's growing dominance over CRAG. Especially after the election of Neil Goldschmidt as Portland mayor in 1972 and the rise of his planning and development program, antipathy between the central city and the suburbs grew. Especially notable was the victory that opponents of the Mt. Hood Freeway won upon that project's removal from the federal interstate highway system in 1975. Since 1966, CRAG had housed the Portland-Vancouver Metropolitan Area Transportation Study, an agency that tended to follow the classic highway-era solution of extensive freeway construction. In this context, the resolution of the Mt. Hood Freeway controversy underscored the extent to which the City of Portland, which stood to lose on so many fronts if the project was completed, blocked CRAG's regional transportation planning at the expense of suburban residents, who would have benefited a great deal from an expanded metropolitan highway network. The city's victory also highlighted the increasingly close relationship that CRAG staff members enjoyed with the City of Portland Office of Planning and Development.

On top of tensions among CRAG membership, the general public's criticism of CRAG grew more intense during the early and mid-1970s. Although a significant portion of the Portland region supported CRAG's planning initiatives and its attempts to preserve the natural environment, many others saw it as yet another layer of inefficient government bureaucracy that encroached upon their property rights and that fumbled its delivery of transportation, utility, and land development programs.

Merger with MSD

In an effort to ameliorate some of the problems that surrounded CRAG and its planning functions, a number of regional government proponents assembled what became a successful grant application to the National Academy for Public Administration. The grant from this organization funded the Tri-County Local Government Commission, which functioned between 1975 and 1977 and which sought to design no less than a government that would attend to the planning and service needs of the entire Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas county region. In the middle of 1976, the Tri-County Commission made its recommendations to the Oregon state legislature. Most notable was its proposal to combine CRAG with the Metropolitan Service District, an agency that the voters approved in 1970 to function as a general-purpose container holding as many concrete services benefiting the Portland metropolitan area as possible. As a solution of the conflict between the interests of the region versus those of local government officials who represented their agencies on CRAG, the Tri-County Commission also recommended the direct election of regional councilors who represented districts that coincided with traditional communities. The Tri-County Commission also suggested MSD's absorption of both TriMet and the Port of Portland.

In response, the Oregon state legislature made several changes to the Commission's recommendations. It maintained a merger with CRAG and the formation of an elected council, one that was somewhat reduced in size; reduced MSD's geographic coverage; added the possibility of a tax base for the agency; dropped the possibility of a merger with TriMet and the Port of Portland; and required voter approval for the entire package during elections in May 1978.

Titled "Reorganize Metropolitan Service District, Abolish CRAG," the ballot measure won a 55% majority across Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas counties—that is, CRAG's entire jurisdiction. MSD's proposed reduced geographic coverage ironically compelled many regional government opponents who lived within CRAG's jurisdiction to vote in favor of a fortified MSD, a move that, in effect, was a vote to remove themselves from the reach of regional government. In all, most of the margin of victory came from Multnomah County. Washington County voters favored the measure only by a slim majority whereas Clackamas County rejected it by 2000 votes. In compliance with the terms of the measure, CRAG merged its work into MSD by the end of 1978 and ceased to exist on January 1, 1979.

Evaluation

While CRAG was beset with serious problems, it operated during an era that saw profound changes in state government and public opinion that enabled the rise of regional approaches to governance. Working in tandem with the state and its willingness to shepherd land use planning and regional government—a commitment that was unusually strong compared to the rest of the nation—CRAG innovated several elements that have become major parts of regional government in the Portland

region. The agency also set a new precedent for the reach of regional government in the area, and it laid the groundwork for a more robust Metropolitan Service District to take over regional planning and services in the late 1970s. In all, in spite of the difficulties it encountered during its lifespan, CRAG played a crucial role in the emergence of Portland's regional approach to solving problems that affect the entire metropolitan area.

Chronology of CRAG

1956	The Joint Legislative Interim Committee on Local Government examines annexation, service districts, and planning issues, raises the idea of "urban area councils," and recommends further study of metropolitan government.
1957	The City of Portland and Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas counties establish the four-member Metropolitan Planning Commission. It operated until 1966, at which point CRAG absorbed its staff and projects.
1959	The Portland-Vancouver Metropolitan Transportation Study begins its work. It operated until 1967, at which point CRAG took control of the agency.
1961	The Oregon state legislature creates the Interim Committee on Local Government Problems.
1963	The Interim Committee on Local Government Problems recommends the creation of the Portland Metropolitan Study Commission (PMSC), which operated between 1964 and 1971.
1965	PMSC begins investigating a more inclusive council of governments to replace the Metropolitan Planning Commission.
1966	The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development mandates that all metropolitan areas that receive planning and infrastructure funding provide representation of 90% of metropolitan area residents in a metropolitan planning organization.
	PMSC hosts officials from Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas counties and from city governments within those counties to discuss the formation of a council of governments that became CRAG.
	A PMSC-committee appoints a CRAG bylaw drafting committee that works during the spring and summer. This committee writes a constitution for CRAG that provides for a General Assembly and an Executive Committee (also called Executive Board and Board of Directors at various points in time).
	The CRAG General Assembly meets for the first time on October 13.
1969	The Oregon state legislature creates the Portland Metropolitan Area Local Government Boundary Commission. The legislature specifies that no elected officials could serve on the commission, thereby barring any members of CRAG or other councils of government from playing a role in decisions over city or special district boundaries.
	After concern over burgeoning development in the Willamette Valley, the Oregon state legislature adopts Senate Bill 10, which requires cities and counties to develop comprehensive land use plans that meet ten state guidelines.

	After meeting the condition put forth by proponents of regional government that a measure creating the Metropolitan Service District (MSD) appear on the May 1970 ballot, the Oregon state legislature creates TriMet, which took over operation of the Portland area public transportation system from the failing Rose City Transit.
1970	Oregon voters approve a ballot measure creating the MSD.
1973	The Oregon state legislature adopts Senate Bill 100, which strengthened the state's commitment to land use planning by correcting flaws in Senate Bill 10 (1969) and creating the Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC).
1974	Senate Bill 769 requires Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas counties and all municipal governments within those counties to establish membership with CRAG. Before this legislation, membership on the part of those government agencies had been voluntary.
	The State of Oregon rewrites its planning goals after a series of workshops and public meetings involving around 10,000 participants addressed the issue.
1975	Oregon Governor Robert Straub formally requests removal of the Mt. Hood Freeway from the federal interstate highway system. The controversy over the proposed project and its ultimate elimination demonstrated the large degree to which the City of Portland exercised influence over CRAG and transportation planning in general.
	The Portland Metropolitan Area Local Government Boundary Commission sponsors a successful grant application to the National Academy for Public Administration, thus creating the Tri-County Local Government Commission.
1976	In February and March, CRAG holds a series of public hearings to gather testimony in reaction to the proposed Land Use Framework Element of the CRAG Regional Plan.
	The Eugene-based Committee to Restore Local Control of Land Planning adds a ballot measure that proposed abolishing all councils of government in Oregon and CRAG in particular. Although the measure failed, it marked a loss of confidence in CRAG's ability to address regional concerns.
	The Tri-County Local Government Commission recommends merging CRAG into MSD and the direct election of regional policymakers on MSD, among other proposals.
	In December, the CRAG Board of Directors adopts the Land Use Framework Element of the CRAG Regional Plan, a document that establishes land use planning policy.
1977	In May, the CRAG Board of Directors adopts the Planning and Adoption Process of the Land Use Framework Element of the CRAG Regional Plan, a document that outlines the process by which the agency conducts land use planning.
	The Oregon state legislature modifies the Tri-County Local Government Commission's recommendations regarding a CRAG-MSD merger by reducing the proposed council size from 15 to 12, eliminating a proposed Executive Director's veto power, reducing

	the geographic coverage of MSD's proposed jurisdiction, dropping MSD's proposed absorption of TriMet and the Port of Portland, and requiring voter approval of the entire CRAG-MSD merger as modified by the state legislature.
1978	Voters in Multnomah, Washington, and Clackamas counties approve the CRAG-MSD merger by a 55% majority.
1979	On January 1, an expanded MSD officially begins operation; CRAG ceases to exist.

Summary Collection Description

This collection documents the work of the Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) from its founding and early days in 1966 to its merger with the Metropolitan Service District (MSD) on January 1, 1979.

Metro acquired this collection through a variety of means and at various points in time. Upon merging with the MSD, CRAG essentially accessioned much of its records to the newly reformed agency. In fact, Metro acquired the bulk of the CRAG Collection through these means. Throughout the 1980s and much of the 1990s, this collection existed in storage unprocessed.

Becky Shoemaker Metro Records Officer /Archivist set the collection aside and reserved it for archival processing. Following this action and the point at which the collection went through systematic inventorying, several staff members at Metro (especially Planning Department staff) contributed additional materials to the collection that had stored in work area over the years. Metro acquired perhaps one third of the collection from these staff members.

During the fall academic terms of 2005 and 2006, groups of practicum students from the Department of History at Portland State University (PSU) inventoried the collection and rearranged its contents in preparation for the creation of a finding aid. Between February and July of 2007, a Metro Council Office intern conducted further archival processing, sharpened the inventory work that Portland State University students had performed, and worked on developing a finding aid to the collection.

Since publishing the Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) finding aid, another twenty linear feet of paper records relating to CRAG were discovered during a warehouse cleanup project. As soon as an inventory of the records is completed, the contents will be incorporated into the CRAG Collection and a new version of the finding aid will be published.

Please Note: The newly discovered records will not be available to the public for research purposes until collection processing is completed.

Box Numbers and Descriptions

Below is a general list of numbers and descriptions for the boxes in which the CRAG collection is contained.

Box Nbr	Box Description
COUNC0332	General Assembly Meetings
COUNC0333	Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors Meeting Records (1966-1971)
COUNC0334	Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors Meeting Records (1972-1973)
COUNC0335	Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors Meeting Records (1973-1974)
COUNC0336	Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors Meeting Records (1975-1976)
COUNC0337	Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors Meeting Records (1977)
COUNC0338	Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors Meeting Records (1978)
COUNC0339	Advisory Committee Meetings
COUNC0340	General Advisory Board Meetings
COUNC0341	Transportation Technical Subcommittee/Transportation Committee/Transportation Technical Advisory Committee (March 1971 – June 1976)
COUNC0342	Transportation Technical Advisory Committee (July 1976-December 1978)
COUNC0343	Organization, Structure, and Policy; Orders, Rules, and Resolutions
COUNC0344	Budgets and Finance; Personnel; Comprehensive Planning
COUNC0345	Land Use Planning/Urban Growth Boundary
COUNC0346	Land Use Planning/Urban Growth Boundary (continued); Transportation
COUNC0347	Various Materials
COUNC0348	Various Materials (continued)
COUNC0349	CRAG/MSD Transition

Collection Divisions and Subdivisions

Collection Division 1: Meeting Records

The bulk of the CRAG collection consists of meeting records from CRAG's principal groups, most notably the Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors. Meeting records also exist from the General Assembly, the Advisory Committee/General Advisory Board, and the Transportation Technical Subcommittee/Transportation Committee/Transportation Technical Advisory Committee.

[Note: The phrase "meeting packet" denotes any materials associated with a particular meeting - agendas, supporting documents, and completed/approved meeting minutes]

1.01: General Assembly (1966-1978)

The small size of this series of meeting records relative to the size of the Executive Committee serves as one indication of the extent to which the General Assembly influenced the policymaking and the exercise of power within CRAG.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0332 / 1	Meeting Packet	10/13/1966
COUNC0332 / 2	Meeting Packet	04/27/1967
COUNC0332 / 3	Meeting Packet	10/17/1969
COUNC0332 / 4	Meeting Packet	11/13/1970
COUNC0332 / 5	Meeting Packet	02/19/1971
COUNC0332 / 6	Meeting Packet	02/18/1972
COUNC0332 / 7	Meeting Packet	05/25/1972
COUNC0332 / 8	General Assembly/Board of Directors joint meeting packets	06/13/1974 to
		06/27/1974
COUNC0332 / 9	Meeting Packet	10/31/1974
COUNC0332 / 10	Meeting Packet	01/30/1975
COUNC0332 / 11	Meeting Packet	02/27/1975
COUNC0332 / 12	Meeting Packet	05/01/1975
COUNC0332 / 13	Meeting Packet	06/05/1975
COUNC0332 / 14	Meeting Packet	10/30/1975
COUNC0332 / 15	Meeting Packet	01/29/1976
COUNC0332 / 16	Meeting Packet	02/23/1978

1.02: Executive Committee/Executive Board/Board of Directors

Ostensibly charged with the responsibility to execute the policy of the General Assembly but, in practice, functioning as the center of power within CRAG, the Executive Committee created a prolific series of meeting records. Throughout the CRAG collection, records refer to this body by three names: the Executive Committee (1966-1971), the Executive Board (1971-1974), and the Board of Directors (1974-1978).

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0333 / 1	Meeting Packet	10/18/1966
COUNC0333 / 2	Meeting Packet	11/21/1966
COUNC0333 / 3	Meeting Packet	12/01/1966
COUNC0333 / 4	Meeting Packet	12/08/1966
COUNC0333 / 5	Meeting Packet	12/16/1966
COUNC0333 / 6	Meeting Packet	01/06/1967
COUNC0333 / 7	Meeting Packet	02/17/1967
COUNC0333 / 8	Meeting Packet	03/10/1967
COUNC0333 / 9	Meeting Packet	04/14/1967
COUNC0333 / 10	Meeting Packet	04/27/1967
COUNC0333 / 11	Meeting Packet	05/04/1967
COUNC0333 / 12	Meeting Packet	05/11/1967
COUNC0333 / 13	Meeting Packet	05/25/1967
COUNC0333 / 14	Meeting Packet	06/05/1967
COUNC0333 / 15	Meeting Packet	06/15/1967
COUNC0333 / 16	Meeting Packet	06/23/1967
COUNC0333 / 17	Meeting Packet	07/20/1967
COUNC0333 / 18	Meeting Packet	08/25/1967
COUNC0333 / 19	Meeting Packet	09/15/1967
COUNC0333 / 20	Meeting Packet	10/20/1967
COUNC0333 / 21	Meeting Packet	11/24/1967
COUNC0333 / 22	Meeting Packet	12/15/1967
COUNC0333 / 23	Documents related to public hearing on resolution to form	01/24/1968
	the Mountain View Water District in Clackamas County	
COUNC0333 / 24	Joint Executive Committee/General Assembly Meeting Packet	02/02/1968
COUNC0333 / 25	Meeting Packet	02/16/1968
COUNC0333 / 26	Meeting Packet	03/01/1968
COUNC0333 / 27	Meeting Packet	03/15/1968
COUNC0333 / 28	Meeting Packet	03/20/1968
COUNC0333 / 29	Meeting Packet	04/19/1968
COUNC0333 / 30	Meeting Packet	05/31/1968
COUNC0333 / 31	Meeting Packet	06/21/1968
COUNC0333 / 32	Meeting Packet	07/19/1968
COUNC0333 / 33	Meeting Packet	08/16/1968
COUNC0333 / 34	Meeting Packet	08/30/1968
COUNC0333 / 35	Meeting Packet	09/20/1968
COUNC0333 / 36	Meeting Packet	10/04/1968
COUNC0333 / 37	Meeting Packet	10/18/1968
COUNC0333 / 38	Meeting Packet	11/01/1968
COUNC0333 / 39	Meeting Packet	11/15/1968
COUNC0333 / 40	Meeting Packet	11/25/1968
COUNC0333 / 41	Executive Committee/General Assembly Committee mailing	12/06/1968
COUNC0333 / 42	Meeting Packet	12/13/1968
COUNC0333 / 43	Executive Committee/General Assembly mailing	01/10/1969
COUNC0333 / 44	Special Meeting regarding Washington County master water and sewer plan	01/17/1969
COUNC0333 / 45	Meeting Packet	01/17/1969

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0333 / 46	Procedure for distribution of meeting notices and agendas	02/14/1969
COUNC0333 / 47	Meeting Packet	02/21/1969
COUNC0333 / 48	Meeting Packet	03/04/1969
COUNC0333 / 49	Meeting Packet	03/07/1969
COUNC0333 / 50	Meeting Packet	03/21/1969
COUNC0333 / 51	Meeting Packet	04/18/1969
COUNC0333 / 52	Meeting Packet	05/02/1969
COUNC0333 / 53	Meeting Packet	05/16/1969
COUNC0333 / 54	Meeting Packet	05/23/1969
COUNC0333 / 55	Meeting Packet	06/20/1969
COUNC0333 / 56	Meeting Packet	07/18/1969
COUNC0333 / 57	Meeting Packet	08/15/1969
COUNC0333 / 58	Meeting Packet	09/05/1969
COUNCO333 / 59	Meeting Packet	09/26/1969
COUNCO333 / 60	Meeting Packet	11/07/1969
COUNCO333 / 61	Meeting Packet	11/21/1969
COUNC0333 / 62	Joint Executive Committee/Tri-Met Transit District Board meeting	12/12/1969
COUNC0333 / 63	Meeting Packet	12/19/1969
COUNC0333 / 64	Meeting Packet	01/16/1970
COUNC0333 / 65	Meeting Packet	02/06/1970
COUNC0333 / 66	Meeting Packet	03/06/1970
COUNC0333 / 67	Meeting Packet	04/02/1970
COUNC0333 / 68	Meeting Packet	04/17/1970
COUNC0333 / 69	Meeting Packet	04/24/1970
COUNC0333 / 70	Meeting Packet	05/15/1970
COUNC0333 / 71	Meeting Packet	06/19/1970
COUNC0333 / 72	Meeting Packet	07/10/1970
COUNC0333 / 73	Meeting Packet	08/07/1970
COUNC0333 / 74	Meeting Packet	08/17/1970
COUNCO333 / 75	Meeting Packet	08/21/1970
COUNCO333 / 76	Meeting Packet	09/18/1970
COUNCO333 / 77	Man Hour Status Report and Budget Statements	09/30/1970
COUNCO333 / 78	Meeting Packet	10/02/1970
COUNC0333 / 79 COUNC0333 / 80	Meeting Packet	10/16/1970
COUNC0333 / 81	Meeting Packet Meeting Packet	11/20/1970
COUNC0333 / 81	Meeting Packet Meeting Packet	12/21/1970 01/15/1971
COUNC0333 / 82	Meeting Packet Meeting Packet	02/02/1971
COUNC0333 / 84	Meeting Facket Meeting Packet	02/02/1971
COUNC0333 / 85	Meeting Packet Meeting Packet	02/12/19/1
COUNC0333 / 86	Meeting Packet Meeting Packet	03/19/1971
COUNC0333 / 87	Meeting Packet Meeting Packet	04/16/1971
COUNC0333 / 88	Meeting Packet	04/23/1971
COUNC0333 / 89	Meeting Packet	05/21/1971
COUNC0333 / 90	Meeting Packet	06/04/1971
3001.300007 70		00,01,17,1

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0333 / 91	Meeting Packet	06/18/1971
COUNC0333 / 92	Meeting Packet	06/30/1971
COUNC0333 / 93	Meeting Packet	07/09/1971
COUNC0333 / 94	Meeting Packet	07/23/1971
COUNC0333 / 95	Meeting Packet	07/30/1971
COUNC0333 / 96	Meeting Packet	08/13/1971
COUNC0333 / 97	Meetings, Personnel, and CRAG Office	08/19/1971
COUNC0333 / 98	Meeting Packet	08/26/1971
COUNC0333 / 99	Executive Board Workshop	09/11/1971
COUNC0333 / 100	Meeting Packet	09/17/1971
COUNC0333 / 101	Proposal for Planning and Coordinating Process	09/30/1971
COUNC0333 / 102	Meeting Packet	10/15/1971
COUNC0333 / 103	Meeting Packet	10/27/1971
COUNC0333 / 104	Meeting Packet	11/12/1971
COUNC0333 / 105	Meeting Packet	11/22/1971
COUNC0333 / 106	Meeting Packet	12/10/1971
COUNC0333 / 107	Meeting Packet	12/17/1971
COUNC0333 / 108	Miscellany — Executive Committee	01/01/1966 to
		01/01/1971
COUNC0334 / 1	Meeting Packet	01/21/1972
COUNC0334 / 2	Meeting Packet	2/11/1972
COUNC0334 / 3	Meeting Packet	2/18/1972
COUNC0334 / 4	Meeting Packet	03/31/1972
COUNC0334 / 5	Meeting Packet	04/21/1972
COUNC0334 / 6	Meeting Packet	05/19/1972
COUNC0334 / 7	Meeting Packet	06/23/1972
COUNC0334 / 8	Meeting Packet	07/14/1972
COUNC0334 / 9	Meeting Packet	07/21/1972
COUNC0334 / 10	Meeting Packet	08/18/1972
COUNC0334 / 11	Meeting Packet	09/15/1972
COUNC0334 / 12	Meeting Packet	10/20/1972
COUNC0334 / 13	Meeting Packet	11/17/1972
COUNC0334 / 14	Meeting Packet	12/04/1972
COUNC0334 / 15	Special Meeting Packet	12/29/1972
COUNC0334 / 16	Meeting Packet	01/19/1973
COUNC0334 / 17	Meeting Packet	01/24/1973
COUNC0334 / 18	Meeting Packet	02/02/1973
COUNC0334 / 19	Meeting Packet	02/16/1973
COUNC0334 / 20	Meeting Packet	02/28/1973
COUNC0334 / 21	Meeting Packet	03/1/1973
COUNC0334 / 22	Meeting Packet	03/16/1973
COUNC0334 / 23	Meeting Packet	03/31/1973
COUNC0334 / 24	Meeting Packet	04/14/1973
COUNC0334 / 25	Meeting Packet	04/20/1973
COUNC0335 / 1	Meeting Packet	05/18/1973
COUNC0335 / 2	Meeting Packet	06/15/1973
COUNC0335 / 3	Meeting Packet	07/20/1973

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0335 / 4	Meeting Packet	08/17/1973
COUNC0335 / 5	Meeting Packet	09/07/1973
COUNC0335 / 6	Meeting Packet	09/21/1973
COUNC0335 / 7	Meeting Packet	10/05/1973
COUNC0335 / 8	Meeting Packet	10/19/1973
COUNC0335 / 9	Meeting Packet	11/02/1973
COUNC0335 / 10	Meeting Packet	11/16/1973
COUNC0335 / 11	Meeting Packet	12/07/1973
COUNC0335 / 12	Meeting Packet	12/21/1973
COUNC0335 / 13	Meeting Packet	01/04/1974
COUNC0335 / 14	Meeting Packet	01/18/1974
COUNC0335 / 15	Meeting Packet	02/01/1974
COUNC0335 / 16	Meeting Packet	02/15/1974
COUNC0335 / 17	Meeting Packet	03/01/1974
COUNC0335 / 18	Meeting Packet	03/15/1974
COUNC0335 / 19	Meeting Packet	04/05/1974
COUNC0335 / 20	Special Meeting Packet	04/12/1974
COUNC0335 / 21	Meeting Packet	04/19/1974
COUNC0335 / 22	Meeting Packet	05/17/1974
COUNC0335 / 23	Meeting Packet	05/31/1974
COUNC0335 / 24	Meeting Packet	06/06/1974
COUNC0335 / 25	Meeting Packet	06/20/1974
COUNC0335 / 26	Meeting Packet	06/27/1974
COUNC0335 / 27	Meeting Packet	07/25/1974
COUNC0335 / 28	Meeting Packet	08/15/1974
COUNC0335 / 29	Meeting Packet	09/05/1974
COUNC0335 / 30	Meeting Packet	09/17/1974
COUNC0335 / 31	Meeting Packet	10/03/1974
COUNCO335 / 32	Meeting Packet	10/16/1974
COUNCO335 / 33	Meeting Packet	10/24/1974
COUNCO335 / 34	Meeting Packet	11/26/1974
COUNC0335 / 35	Special Board of Directors Committee of Whole (Transportation) Meeting Packet	12/13/1974
COUNC0335 / 36	Meeting Packet	12/26/1974
COUNC0336 / 1	Meeting Packet	01/16/1975
COUNC0336 / 2	Meeting Packet	01/23/1975
COUNC0336 / 3	Special Meeting Packet	01/27/1975
COUNC0336 / 4	Meeting Packet	02/27/1975
COUNC0336 / 5	Meeting Packet	03/06/1975
COUNC0336 / 6	Meeting Packet	03/20/1975
COUNC0336 / 7	Meeting Packet	03/27/1975
COUNC0336 / 8	Meeting Packet	04/24/1975
COUNC0336 / 9	Meeting Packet	05/22/1975
COUNC0336 / 10	Meeting Packet	06/12/1975
COUNC0336 / 11	Meeting Packet	06/18/1975
COUNC0336 / 12	Meeting Packet	07/15/1975

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0336 / 13	Meeting Packet	07/31/1975
COUNC0336 / 14	Meeting Packet	08/28/1975
COUNC0336 / 15	Meeting Packet	09/25/1975
COUNC0336 / 16	Meeting Packet	10/23/1975
COUNC0336 / 17	Meeting Packet	11/20/1975
COUNC0336 / 18	Meeting Packet	12/11/1975
COUNC0336 / 19	Meeting Packet	12/18/1975
COUNC0336 / 20	Meeting Packet	01/22/1976
COUNC0336 / 21	Meeting Packet	02/26/1976
COUNC0336 / 22	Meeting Packet	03/25/1976
COUNC0336 / 23	Meeting Packet	04/22/1976
COUNC0336 / 24	Meeting Packet	05/27/1976
COUNC0336 / 25	Meeting Packet	06/03/1976
COUNC0336 / 26	Meeting Packet	06/24/1976
COUNC0336 / 27	Meeting Packet	07/22/1976
COUNC0336 / 28	Special Meeting Packet	08/19/1976
COUNC0336 / 29	Meeting Packet	09/16/1976
COUNC0336 / 30	Meeting Packet	09/30/1976
COUNC0336 / 31	Meeting Packet	11/04/1976
COUNC0336 / 32	Meeting Packet	11/18/1976
COUNC0336 / 33	Meeting Packet	12/02/1976
COUNC0336 / 34	Special Meeting Packet	12/16/1976
COUNC0337 / 1	Meeting Packet	01/06/1977
COUNC0337 / 2	Meeting Packet	01/20/1977
COUNC0337 / 3	Meeting Packet	01/27/1977
COUNC0337 / 4	Meeting Packet	02/24/1977
COUNC0337 / 5	Special Meeting Packet	03/09/1977
COUNC0337 / 6	Meeting Packet	03/31/1977
COUNCO337 / 7	Meeting Packet	04/28/1977
COUNCO337 / 8	Meeting Packet	05/26/1977
COUNCO337 / 9	Meeting Packet	06/02/1977
COUNCO337 / 10	Meeting Packet	06/23/1977
COUNCO337 / 11	Meeting Packet	07/27/1977
COUNCO337 / 12	Meeting Packet	08/04/1977
COUNCO337 / 13	Meeting Packet	08/25/1977
COUNCO337 / 14	Meeting Packet	09/22/1977
COUNCO337 / 15	Meeting Packet	10/27/1977
COUNCO337 / 16	Meeting Packet	11/28/1977
COUNCO337 / 17	Meeting Packet	12/22/1977
COUNCO338 / 1	Meeting Packet	01/26/1978 02/23/1978
COUNC0338 / 2 COUNC0338 / 3	Meeting Packet	03/23/1978
	Meeting Packet	
COUNC0338 / 4 COUNC0338 / 5	Meeting Packet Joint Board of Directors/General Assembly Meeting Packet	04/27/1978
	Meeting Packet Meeting Packet	05/25/1978
		06/22/1978
_COUNC0338 / 7	Meeting Packet	07/27/1978

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0338 / 8	Meeting Packet	08/24/1978
COUNC0338 / 9	Meeting Packet	09/28/1978
COUNC0338 / 10	Meeting Packet	10/26/1978
COUNC0338 / 11	Meeting Packet	11/16/1978
COUNC0338 / 12	Meeting Packet	12/21/1978
COUNC0338 / 13	Meeting Minutes	01/26/1978 to
		12/21/1978
COUNC0338 / 14	Meeting Minutes	01/21/1972
COUNC0338 / 15	Meeting Minutes	02/11/1972
COUNC0338 / 16	Meeting Minutes	02/17/1972
COUNC0338 / 17	Meeting Minutes	03/31/1972
COUNC0338 / 18	Meeting Minutes	04/21/1972
COUNC0338 / 19	Meeting Minutes	05/19/1972
COUNC0338 / 20	Meeting Minutes	06/23/1972
COUNC0338 / 21	Meeting Minutes	07/14/1972
COUNC0338 / 22	Meeting Minutes	07/21/1972
COUNC0338 / 23	Meeting Minutes	08/18/1972
COUNC0338 / 24	Meeting Minutes	09/15/1972
COUNC0338 / 25	Meeting Minutes	10/20/1972
COUNC0338 / 26	Meeting Minutes	11/17/1972
COUNC0338 / 27	Meeting Minutes	12/04/1972
COUNC0338 / 28	Meeting Minutes	01/19/1973
COUNC0338 / 29	Meeting Minutes	01/24/1973
COUNC0338 / 30	Meeting Minutes	02/02/1973
COUNC0338 / 31	Meeting Minutes	02/16/1973
COUNC0338 / 32	Meeting Minutes	03/31/1973
COUNC0338 / 33	Meeting Minutes	04/14/1973
COUNCO338 / 34	Meeting Minutes	04/20/1973
COUNCO338 / 35	Meeting Minutes	05/18/1973
COUNCO338 / 36	Meeting Minutes	07/20/1973
COUNCO338 / 37	Meeting Minutes	08/17/1973
COUNCO338 / 38	Meeting Minutes	09/07/1973
COUNCO338 / 39	Meeting Minutes	09/21/1973
COUNCO338 / 40	Meeting Minutes Meeting Minutes	10/05/1973
COUNCO338 / 41	·	10/19/1973
COUNC0338 / 42 COUNC0338 / 43	Meeting Minutes	11/02/1973
	Meeting Minutes	11/16/1973
COUNCO338 / 44	Meeting Minutes	12/07/1973
COUNC0338 / 45 COUNC0338 / 46	Meeting Minutes Meeting Minutes	12/31/1973
	Meeting Minutes Meeting Minutes	01/26/1978
COUNC0338 / 47 COUNC0338 / 48	Meeting Minutes Meeting Minutes	02/23/1978
COUNC0338 / 48	Meeting Minutes Meeting Minutes	03/23/1978 04/27/1978
COUNC0338 / 50	Meeting Minutes Meeting Minutes	• • •
COUNC0338 / 50	Meeting Minutes Meeting Minutes	05/25/1978
		06/22/1978
COUNC0338 / 52	Meeting Minutes	07/27/1978

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0338 / 53	Meeting Minutes	08/24/1978
COUNC0338 / 54	Meeting Minutes	09/28/1978
COUNC0338 / 55	Meeting Minutes	10/26/1978
COUNC0338 / 56	Meeting Minutes	11/16/1978
COUNC0338 / 57	Meeting Minutes	12/21/1978

1.03: Advisory Committee/General Advisory Board

Spelling out the ancillary powers of the agency, the Constitution of the Columbia Region Association of Governments specified that CRAG had the power "to establish technical study and advisory committees" as one means of carrying out the agency's functions and administrative duties. Characteristic of other CRAG bodies, this group was known as the Advisory Committee (1967-1971) and the General Advisory Board (1971-1973). There is no explanation in the record collection why no Advisory Committee / General Advisory Board records exist past mid-1973.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0339 / 1	Meeting Packet	01/12/1967
COUNC0339 / 2	Meeting Packet	04/05/1967
COUNC0339 / 3	Meeting Packet (Metropolitan Planning Commission	04/11/1967
	Subcommittee)	
COUNC0339 / 4	Meeting Packet (Subcommittee on Development of a Work	04/12/1967
	Program)	
COUNC0339 / 5	Meeting Packet	04/14/1967
COUNC0339 / 6	Meeting Packet	04/19/1967
COUNC0339 / 7	Meeting Packet	04/25/1967
COUNC0339 / 8	Meeting Packet	05/03/1967
COUNC0339 / 9	Meeting Packet	05/10/1967
COUNC0339 / 10	Meeting Packet	05/25/1967
COUNC0339 / 11	Meeting Packet	06/01/1967
COUNC0339 / 12	Meeting Packet	06/09/1967
COUNC0339 / 13	Meeting Packet	06/20/1967
COUNC0339 / 14	Meeting Packet	06/30/1967
COUNC0339 / 15	Meeting Packet	07/14/1967
COUNC0339 / 16	Meeting Packet	08/11/1967
COUNC0339 / 17	Meeting Packet	09/08/1967
COUNC0339 / 18	Meeting Packet	10/13/1967
COUNC0339 / 19	Meeting Packet	11/10/1967
COUNC0339 / 20	Meeting Packet	11/24/1967
COUNC0339 / 21	Meeting Packet	12/08/1967
COUNC0339 / 22	Meeting Packet	12/15/1967
COUNC0339 / 23	Meeting Packet	12/22/1967
COUNC0339 / 24	Meeting Packet	01/12/1968
COUNC0339 / 25	Meeting Packet	01/26/1968
COUNC0339 / 26	Meeting Packet	02/09/1968
COUNC0339 / 27	Meeting Packet	03/08/1968
COUNC0339 / 28	Meeting Packet	03/20/1968
COUNC0339 / 29	Meeting Packet	04/12/1968

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0339 / 30	Meeting Packet	04/26/1968
COUNC0339 / 31	Meeting Packet	05/10/1968
COUNC0339 / 32	Meeting Packet	06/14/1968
COUNC0339 / 33	Meeting Packet	6/28/1968
COUNC0339 / 34	Meeting Packet	7/26/1968
COUNC0339 / 35	Meeting Packet	08/09/1968
COUNC0339 / 36	Meeting Packet	08/23/1968
COUNC0339 / 37	Meeting Packet	09/13/1968
COUNC0339 / 38	Meeting Packet	09/27/1968
COUNC0339 / 39	Meeting Packet	10/11/1968
COUNC0339 / 40	Meeting Packet	10/25/1968
COUNC0339 / 41	Meeting Packet	11/08/1968
COUNC0339 / 42	Meeting Packet	11/13/1968
COUNC0339 / 43	Meeting Packet	11/22/1968
COUNC0339 / 44	Meeting Packet	12/13/1968
COUNC0339 / 45	Meeting Packet	01/10/1969
COUNC0339 / 46	Meeting Packet	01/24/1969
COUNC0339 / 47	Meeting Packet	02/14/1969
COUNC0339 / 48	Meeting Packet	02/28/1969
COUNC0339 / 49	Meeting Packet	03/05/1969
COUNC0339 / 50	Meeting Packet	03/14/1969
COUNC0339 / 51	Meeting Packet	03/28/1969
COUNC0339 / 52	Meeting Packet	04/11/1969
COUNC0339 / 53	Meeting Packet	04/25/1969
COUNC0339 / 54	Meeting Packet	05/09/1969
COUNC0339 / 55	Meeting Packet	05/23/1969
COUNC0339 / 56	Meeting Packet	06/13/1969
COUNC0339 / 57	Meeting Packet	07/11/1969
COUNC0339 / 58	Meeting Packet	07/25/1969
COUNC0339 / 59	Meeting Packet	08/15/1969
COUNC0339 / 60	Meeting Packet	09/12/1969
COUNC0339 / 61	Meeting Packet	09/19/1969
COUNC0339 / 62	Meeting Packet	10/03/1969
COUNC0339 / 63	Meeting Packet	10/24/1969
COUNC0339 / 64	Meeting Packet	10/31/1969
COUNC0339 / 65	Meeting Packet	11/07/1969
COUNC0339 / 66	Meeting Packet	12/12/1969
COUNC0339 / 67	Meeting Packet	01/08/1970
COUNC0339 / 68	Meeting Packet	01/09/1970
COUNC0339 / 69	Meeting Packet	01/10/1970
COUNC0339 / 70	Meeting Packet	01/23/1970
COUNC0339 / 71	Meeting Packet	02/13/1970
COUNC0339 / 72	Meeting Packet	03/13/1970
COUNC0339 / 73	Meeting Packet	04/10/1970
COUNC0339 / 74	Meeting Packet	04/21/1970
COUNC0339 / 75	Meeting Packet	05/08/1970

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0339 / 76	Meeting Packet	05/22/1970
COUNC0339 / 77	Meeting Packet	06/12/1970
COUNC0339 / 78	Meeting Packet	06/26/1970
COUNC0339 / 79	Meeting Packet	07/10/1970
COUNC0339 / 80	Meeting Packet	07/24/1970
COUNC0339 / 81	Meeting Packet	08/14/1970
COUNC0339 / 82	Meeting Packet	09/11/1970
COUNC0339 / 83	Meeting Packet	10/09/1970
COUNC0339 / 84	Meeting Packet	10/23/1970
COUNC0339 / 85	Meeting Packet	11/13/1970
COUNC0339 / 86	Meeting Packet	12/11/1970
COUNC0339 / 87	Meeting Packet	01/08/1971
COUNC0339 / 88	Meeting Packet	01/15/1971
COUNC0339 / 89	Projects tabled by Advisory Committee — no further action	Undated
	called	
COUNC0340 / 1	Meeting Packet	02/16/1971
COUNC0340 / 2	Meeting Packet	06/18/1971
COUNC0340 / 3	Meeting Packet	07/16/1971
COUNC0340 / 4	Meeting Packet	08/06/1971
COUNC0340 / 5	Meeting Packet	09/10/1971
COUNC0340 / 6	Meeting Packet	09/17/1971
COUNC0340 / 7	Meeting Packet	09/17/1971
COUNC0340 / 8	Meeting Packet	10/01/197
COUNC0340 / 9	Meeting Packet	10/15/1971
COUNC0340 / 10	Meeting Packet	11/05/1971
COUNC0340 / 11	Meeting Packet	11/11/1971
COUNC0340 / 12	Meeting Packet	12/10/1971
COUNC0340 / 13	Meeting Packet	12/17/1971
COUNC0340 / 14	Meeting Packet	01/07/1972
COUNC0340 / 15	Meeting Packet	01/21/1972
COUNC0340 / 16	Meeting Packet	02/04/1972
COUNC0340 / 17	Meeting Packet	02/18/1972
COUNC0340 / 18	Meeting Packet	03/03/1972
COUNC0340 / 19	Meeting Packet	03/10/1972
COUNC0340 / 20	Meeting Packet	04/07/1972
COUNC0340 / 21	Special Meeting Packet	04/19/1972
COUNC0340 / 22	Meeting Packet	04/28/1972
COUNC0340 / 23	Meeting Packet	05/05/1972
COUNC0340 / 24	Meeting Packet	05/26/1972
COUNC0340 / 25	Meeting Packet	06/02/1972
COUNC0340 / 26	Meeting Packet	06/23/1972
COUNC0340 / 27	Meeting Packet	07/07/1972
COUNC0340 / 28	Meeting Packet	08/04/1972
COUNC0340 / 29	Meeting Packet	08/15/1972
COUNC0340 / 30	Meeting Packet	08/31/1972
COUNC0340 / 31	Meeting Packet	09/22/1972

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0340 / 32	Meeting Packet	10/06/1972
COUNC0340 / 33	Meeting Packet	10/27/1972
COUNC0340 / 34	Meeting Packet	11/03/1972
COUNC0340 / 35	Meeting Packet	11/10/1972
COUNC0340 / 36	Meeting Packet	12/01/1972
COUNC0340 / 37	Meeting Packet	12/15/1972
COUNC0340 / 38	Meeting Packet	01/12/1973
COUNC0340 / 39	Meeting Packet	01/19/1973
COUNC0340 / 40	Meeting Packet	01/26/1973
COUNC0340 / 41	Meeting Packet	02/02/1973
COUNC0340 / 42	Meeting Packet	02/23/1973
COUNC0340 / 43	Meeting Packet	03/02/1973
COUNC0340 / 44	Meeting Packet	03/16/1973
COUNC0340 / 45	Meeting Packet	04/06/1973
COUNC0340 / 46	Meeting Packet	05/05/1973

1.04: Transportation Technical Subcommittee/Transportation Committee/Transportation Technical Advisory Committee

Transportation was a major policy area for CRAG. One indication of this is the fairly substantial collection of meeting records from this body, to which the CRAG records collection refers by various names: the Transportation Technical Subcommittee, the Transportation Committee, and the Transportation Technical Advisory Committee.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0341 / 1	Meeting Packet	03/12/1971
COUNC0341 / 2	Meeting Packet	02/09/1973
COUNC0341 / 3	Meeting Packet	01/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 4	Meeting Packet	02/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 5	Meeting Packet	03/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 6	Meeting Packet	04/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 7	Meeting Packet	05/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 8	Meeting Packet	06/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 9	Meeting Packet	07/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 10	Meeting Packet	08/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 11	Meeting Packet	09/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 12	Meeting Packet	10/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 13	Meeting Packet	11/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 14	Transportation Technical Advisory Committee By-Laws	10/24/1974
COUNC0341 / 15	Meeting Packet	12/01/1974
COUNC0341 / 16	Meeting Packet	01/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 17	Meeting Packet	02/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 18	Meeting Packet	03/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 19	Meeting Packet	04/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 20	Meeting Packet	05/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 21	Meeting Packet	06/01/1975

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0341 / 22	Meeting Packet	07/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 23	Meeting Packet	08/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 24	Meeting Packet	09/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 25	Meeting Packet	10/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 26	Meeting Packet	11/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 27	Meeting Packet	12/01/1975
COUNC0341 / 28	Meeting Packet	01/01/1976
COUNC0341 / 29	Meeting Packet	02/01/1976
COUNC0341 / 30	Meeting Packet	03/01/1976
COUNC0341 / 31	Meeting Packet	04/01/1976
COUNC0341 / 32	Meeting Packet	05/01/1976
COUNC0341 / 33	Meeting Packet	06/01/1976
COUNC0342 / 1	Meeting Packet	07/09/1976
COUNC0342 / 2	Meeting Packet	08/13/1976
COUNC0342 / 3	Meeting Packet	09/22/1976
COUNC0342 / 4	Meeting Packet	10/29/1976
COUNC0342 / 5	Meeting Packet	11/22/1976
COUNC0342 / 6	Meeting Packet	01/14/1977
COUNC0342 / 7	Meeting Packet	02/11/1977
COUNC0342 / 8	Meeting Packet	03/11/1977
COUNC0342 / 9	Meeting Packet	04/08/1977
COUNC0342 / 10	Meeting Packet	05/13/1977
COUNC0342 / 11	Meeting Packet	06/10/1977
COUNC0342 / 12	Meeting Packet	07/22/1977
COUNC0342 / 13	Meeting Packet	09/09/1977
COUNC0342 / 14	Meeting Packet	10/04/1977
COUNC0342 / 15	Meeting Packet	11/04/1977
COUNC0342 / 16	Meeting Packet	12/09/1977
COUNC0342 / 17	Meeting Packet	01/13/1978
COUNC0342 / 18	Meeting Packet	02/10/1978
COUNC0342 / 19	Meeting Packet	03/10/1978
COUNC0342 / 20	Meeting Packet	04/14/1978
COUNC0342 / 21	Meeting Packet	05/12/1978
COUNC0342 / 22	Meeting Packet	06/09/1978
COUNC0342 / 23	Meeting Packet	07/14/1978
COUNC0342 / 24	Meeting Packet	08/11/1978
COUNC0342 / 25	Meeting Packet	09/15/1978
COUNC0342 / 26	Meeting Packet	10/13/1978
COUNC0342 / 27	Meeting Packet	11/03/1978
COUNC0342 / 28	Meeting Packet	12/08/1978

Collection Division 2: General Materials

This collection division contains documents that indicate the general organization and thrust of CRAG.

2.01: Organizational Structure, Policy, and General Information

Materials describing the structure, overall policy initiatives, and broad information about the agency are relatively few in number but are nonetheless an important part of the collection.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0343 / 1	Metropolitan Planning Commission — Agreements	01/01/1953 to
		10/04/1966
Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0343 / 2	Organizing CRAG, 1966	02/28/1966 to
		10/13/1966
COUNC0343 / 3	CRAG Table of Organization	11/24/1967
COUNC0343 / 4	Memorandum regarding CRAG as a metropolitan government	01/06/1969
COUNC0343 / 5	Organization Chart: Portland Area Planning Organization —	12/20/1971
	Executive Board	
COUNC0343 / 6	Report on CRAG by the Research Group, Inc	12/01/1972
COUNC0343 / 7	Oregon Senate Bill 769 (the CRAG Bill)	04/24/1973
COUNC0343 / 8	The CRAG Review	01/01/1974 to
		02/01/1974
COUNC0343 / 9	Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations,	02/01/1974
	"Government Functions and Processes"	
COUNC0343 / 10	Comparisons of old and new CRAG constitutions/charters	04/27/1967 to
		05/01/1975
COUNC0343 / 11	CRAG Charter Rules (1975)	01/30/1975 to
		05/01/1975
COUNC0343 / 12	Interstate Cooperation Study (Staff Paper)	06/30/1975
COUNC0343 / 13	The Columbia Region Association of Governments: The	01/01/1977
	Agency and its Accomplishments, National Perspective, and	
	History	
COUNC0343 / 14	CRAG Policy Catalogue	09/01/1978
COUNC0343 / 15	LWV Metro: The Metropolitan Connection	10/01/1978
COUNC0343 / 16	Speaking of CRAG	Undated

2.02: Orders, Rules, and Resolutions

Orders, rules, and resolutions were collected in a somewhat unsystematic manner; as a consequence, this portion of the collection is incomplete.

Folder Description	Dates
General Assembly Orders	05/25/1978 to
	12/21/1978
Board of Directors Orders	08/04/1977 to
	02/23/1978
Board of Directors Rules	10/27/1977 to
	12/22/1977
	Board of Directors Orders

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0343 / 20	Board of Directors Rules	12/22/1977 to
		12/21/1978
COUNC0343 / 21	Index to Board of Directors Resolutions (aging, Board of	10/01/1974 to
	Directors policy/procedures, criminal justice, health,	12/01/1978
	management /administration, natural resources, public	
	facilities, planning [regional and general], rules/regulations	
	transportation)	
COUNC0343 / 22	Board of Directors Resolutions	12/01/1974 to
		12/01/1975
COUNC0343 / 23	Board of Directors Resolutions	01/22/1976
COUNC0343 / 24	Board of Directors Resolutions	02/26/1976
COUNC0343 / 25	Board of Directors Resolutions	03/25/1976
COUNC0343 / 26	Board of Directors Resolutions	04/22/1976
COUNC0343 / 27	Board of Directors Resolutions	05/27/1976
COUNC0343 / 28	Board of Directors Resolutions	06/24/1976
COUNC0343 / 29	Board of Directors Resolutions	07/22/1976
COUNC0343 / 30	Board of Directors Resolutions	08/19/1976
COUNC0343 / 31	Board of Directors Resolutions	09/30/1976
COUNC0343 / 32	Board of Directors Resolutions	11/04/1976
COUNC0343 / 33	Board of Directors Resolutions	12/02/1976
COUNC0343 / 34	Board of Directors Resolutions	01/06/1977
COUNC0343 / 35	Board of Directors Resolutions	01/06/1977
COUNC0343 / 36	Rules and Regulations of the Columbia Region Association of	01/06/1977
	Governments (Codified Pursuant to CRAG Resolution #BD	
	770103)	
COUNC0343 / 37	Board of Directors Resolutions	02/24/1977
COUNC0343 / 38	Board of Directors Resolutions	01/01/1977
COUNC0343 / 39	Board of Directors Resolutions	01/26/1978
COUNC0343 / 40	Board of Directors Resolutions	02/23/1978
COUNC0343 / 41	Board of Directors Resolutions	03/23/1978
COUNC0343 / 42	Board of Directors Resolutions	04/27/1978
COUNC0343 / 43	Board of Directors Resolutions	05/25/1978
COUNC0343 / 44	Board of Directors Resolutions	06/22/1978
COUNC0343 / 45	Board of Directors Resolutions	07/27/1978
COUNC0343 / 46	Board of Directors Resolutions	08/24/1978
COUNC0343 / 47	Board of Directors Resolutions	09/28/1978
COUNC0343 / 48	Board of Directors Resolutions	10/26/1978
COUNC0343 / 49	Board of Directors Resolutions	11/16/1978
COUNC0343 / 50	Board of Directors Resolutions	12/01/1978

2.03: Budgets and Finance

Similar to the orders, rules, and resolutions collection of documents, the budget and finance documents in this group are incomplete.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0344 / 1	Columbia Region Association of Governments: Report on Examination of Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 1976	10/08/1976
COUNC0344 / 2	Columbia Region Association of Governments: Report to Management [for fiscal year ending June 30, 1976]	01/06/1977
COUNC0344 / 3	Budget, Fiscal Year 1977	06/03/1976 to 03/31/1977
COUNC0344 / 4	Columbia Region Association of Governments: Report on Examination of Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 1977 (including Audit Comments and Disclosures Required by State Regulations)	09/09/1977
COUNC0344 / 5	Columbia Region Association of Governments: Report to Management [for fiscal year ending June 30, 1977]	12/15/1977
COUNC0344 / 6	Work Program and Budget, Fiscal Year 1978	06/02/1977
COUNC0344 / 7	Budget and Work Program, Fiscal Year 1979	05/01/1978
COUNC0344 / 8	Columbia Region Association of Governments: Report on Examination of Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 1978 (including Audit Comments and Disclosures Required by State Regulations)	09/15/1978

2.04: Appointments

Memorandums regarding the appointments of various persons to various committees and other groups are contained in this section of records.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0344 / 9	Appointment of Robert Buchanan to Technical Advisory	09/26/1967 to
		10/25/1967
COUNC0344 / 10	Matter regarding deaths on Portland City Council and their	03/13/1970
	effect on Executive Committee activity	
COUNC0344 / 11	Appointments to Committees	11/01/1971
COUNC0344 / 12	Advisory Committee Appointments	03/15/1973

Collection Division 3: Specific Issues and Responsibilities

Though somewhat limited in number, materials concerning specific issues and responsibilities with which CRAG engaged offer perhaps the most colorful view into the agency's work. Areas of concern include comprehensive planning, regional land use planning, transportation, criminal justice, parks and recreation, fresh and waste water management, pollution, and the CRAG-MSD merger. Documents within this collection division include publications, reports, correspondence, local and state legislation, meeting records pertinent to specific issues, and public testimony.

3.01: Comprehensive Planning

Since the agency's beginnings in 1966, comprehensive planning was a primary function of CRAG. The agency produced several publications, reports, and other documents throughout its tenure, yet the greatest concentration of these materials date from the early to mid-1970s, during which time the Oregon state legislature and governor's office set a forceful mandate for regional planning (for more, 3.02, Land Use Planning).

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0344 / 13	Willamette Valley Planning	01/01/1968 to
		12/17/1970
COUNC0344 / 14	Planning in the CRAG Region: An Appraisal and New	09/01/1972
	Direction	
COUNC0344 / 15	Planning in the CRAG Region: The Second Step	09/01/1972
COUNC0344 / 16	Planning in the CRAG Region: The Second Step: Revision of	07/01/1973
	the Property Tax System	
COUNC0344 / 17	Columbia-Willamette Region Comprehensive Plan: Discussion	10/01/1974
COUNC0344 / 18	Columbia-Willamette Region Comprehensive Plan: Discussion	11/01/1974
COUNC0344 / 19	CRAG Overview: Data for the Planning Process [packet of	01/01/1975
	maps]	
COUNC0344 / 20	Columbia-Willamette Region Comprehensive Plan Draft and	01/01/1975 to
	Adoption Package — Introduction and Item A	09/01/1976
COUNC0344 / 21	Columbia-Willamette Region Comprehensive Plan Draft and	01/01/1975
	Adoption Package — Item B	
COUNC0344 / 22	Columbia-Willamette Region Comprehensive Plan Draft and	01/01/1975
	Adoption Package — Item C and D	
COUNC0344 / 23	CRAG Planning Overview: Interim Report [1 of 2]	03/01/1975
COUNC0344 / 24	CRAG Planning Overview: Interim Report [2 of 2]	03/01/1975
COUNC0344 / 25	General Planning Data and Projections: Population,	01/01/1977
	Employment, Land Use for the CRAG Region	
COUNC0344 / 26	Annual Planning Progress Review, 1977-1978	07/21/1978
COUNC0344 / 27	Regional Planning Program, 1978-1980	02/01/1978
COUNC0344 / 28	Statement of Compliance with the HUD 701 Comprehensive	04/01/1978
	Planning Assistance Program	
Oversized	Columbia Willamette Region Comprehensive Plan Discussion	11/01/1974

3.02: Land Use Planning

Particularly during the early and mid-1970s, CRAG functioned as the agency with the primary responsibility for carrying out the land use planning goals and objectives that the Oregon state legislature and governor's office set out. Landmark legislation that established this mandate included Senate Bill 10 (1969) and Senate Bill 100 (1973). This latter piece of legislation created the Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC), which monitored local comprehensive plans and determined whether they conformed to state planning guidelines. Note the connection between the passage of this legislation and the proliferation of documents relating to land use planning especially after 1973. Perhaps the central document that CRAG produced during this period is the Land Use Framework Element of the CRAG Regional Plan, adopted by the Board of Directors in December 1976 and by the General Assembly in February 1977.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0345 / 1	Interim Regional Land Use Plan [map]	10/01/1970
COUNC0345 / 2	Bureau of Government Research and Service, "Local	04/01/1974 to
	Government Policies for Urban Development"	04/19/1974
COUNC0345 / 3	"People and the Land" Public Workshop	9/16/1974 to
		10/07/1974
COUNC0345 / 4	Citizen Involvement [in Land Use Planning]	01/01/1975
COUNC0345 / 5	Regional Land Use Framework: Suggested Criteria for	05/21/1975
-	Determining Broad Land Use Areas	_
COUNC0345 / 6	Regional Land Use Framework: Suggested Criteria for	05/21/1975
	Determining Broad Land Use Areas	
COUNC0345 / 7	CRAG Goals and Objectives and Land Use Framework Plan	12/18/1975
COUNC0345 / 8	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 1) -	01/01/1976 to
	Roster/Schedule, CRAG Board of Directors	04/30/1976
COUNC0345 / 9	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 2) -	11/01/1973 to
-	Framework Plan, Data Sheets, Comments	11/17/1975
COUNC0345 / 10	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 3) - Land Use	02/01/1976 to
-	Framework Plan Text	03/01/1976
COUNC0345 / 11	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 4) - Public	02/09/1976
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Multnomah County	
	[Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 1-25]	
COUNC0345 / 12	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 5) - Public	02/10/1976
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Clark County [Vol. 1	
	(public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 26-40]	_
COUNC0345 / 13	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 6) - Public	10/17/1975 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/11/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Clackamas County	
	[Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 41-96]	
COUNC0345 / 14	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 7) - Public	02/10/1976 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/12/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: St. Helens [Vol. 1	
	(public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 97-106]	
COUNC0345 / 15	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 8) - Public	01/10/1976 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/18/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Washington County	
	[Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 107-183]	
COUNC0345 / 16	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 9) - Public	02/10/1976 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/16/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Sandy, Oregon [Vol.	
COLINGODAE / 4E	1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 184-215]	00/40/4054
COUNC0345 / 17	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 10) - Public	02/19/1976
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Regional Hearing	
	(Transcript) [Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 216-	
	248]	_

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0345 / 18	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 11) - Public	02/09/1976 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/19/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Regional Hearing	
	(Written Testimony) [Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony),	
COUNC0345 / 19	pp. 249-372] Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 12) - Written	11/24/1975 to
COUNCUS43 / 19	Testimony on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/03/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules (1 of 3) [Vol. 1	02/03/17/0
	(written testimony), pp. 1-129]	
COUNC0345 / 20	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 13) - Written	01/09/1976 to
•	Testimony on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/18/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules (2 of 3) [Vol. 1	
	(written testimony), pp. 130-217]	
COUNC0345 / 21	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 14) - Written	01/26/1976 to
	Testimony on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/21/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules (3 of 3) [Vol. 1 (written testimony), pp. 218-317]	
COUNC0345 / 22	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 15) – Public	02/27/1976 to
COUNCOS+3 / 22	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/27/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Regional Hearing	02/2//15/0
	(Written Testimony, Continued) [pp. 444-458]	
COUNC0345 / 23	Land Use Framework Plan development (Folder 16) – Land Use	03/09/1976
	Framework Plan: Summary Report	
COUNC0345 / 24	CRAG Task Forces' Recommended Markup Draft (Draft III) for	03/25/1976
	Board Consideration: Goals and Objectives, Land Use	
COUNCODAE / DE	Framework Plan, and Rules for Adoption	00 100 11050
COUNC0345 / 25	Home Builders Association of Metropolitan Portland brochure entitled, "Is CRAG a four-letter word?"	03/29/1976
COUNC0345 / 26	Proposed CRAG Goals & Objectives: Rules for Adopting	07/01/1976
COUNC0345 / 27	Goals and Objectives and Implementing Rules	09/01/1976
COUNC0345 / 28	Land Use Framework Element of the CRAG Regional Plan	12/22/1976 to
		08/25/1977
COUNC0345 / 29	Planning and Adoption Process of the Land Use Framework	05/01/1977
	Element of the CRAG Regional Plan	
COUNC0345 / 30	An Analysis of Land Use Planning, Population Projections and	06/01/1977
	Alternative Futures in the Portland-Vancouver Metropolitan	
COUNCODAE / 24	Area	12 /01 /1077
COUNC0345 / 31	Land Use Framework Element of the CRAG Regional Plan, Revised December 1977	12/01/1977
COUNC0345 / 32	CRAG West Hills Study Information	11/30/1977 to
00011003 1 3 / 32	Grard West fillis study fillorination	11/16/1978
COUNC0345 / 33	Justification for Urban Growth Boundary	08/24/1978
COUNC0345 / 34	CRAG Annual Review: Proposed Amendments to Land Use	10/01/1978
	Framework Element	
COUNC0345 / 35	CRAG Annual Review: Proposed Study Area Designations	03/10/1978 to
		10/01/1978
COUNC0345 / 36	Land Use Framework Element of the CRAG Regional Plan	12/01/1977 to
		11/01/1978

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0345 / 37	Urban Growth Boundary Findings (Revised November 1978)	11/01/1978
COUNC0345 / 38	CRAG Urban Growth Boundary Findings Supplement	01/01/1978
COUNC0346 / 1	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 4) - Public	02/09/1976
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Multnomah County	
·	[Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 1-25] [Duplicate]	
COUNC0346 / 2	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 5) - Public	02/10/1976
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Clark County [Vol.	
	1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 26-40] [Duplicate]	
COUNC0346 / 3	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 6) - Public	10/17/1975 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/11/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Clackamas County	
	[Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 41-96]	
GOVINGOO 4 6 / 4	[Duplicate]	00/40/4056
COUNC0346 / 4	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 7) - Public	02/10/1976 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/12/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: St. Helens [Vol. 1	
COUNC0346 / 5	(public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 97-106] [Duplicate]	01/10/1076 to
COUNCUS40 / 5	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 8) - Public Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	01/10/1976 to 02/18/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Washington	02/10/19/0
	County [Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 107-183]	
	[Duplicate]	
COUNC0346 / 6	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 9) - Public	02/10/1976 to
000110001070	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/16/1976
	Framework Plan and Implementing Rules: Sandy, Oregon	, ,
	[Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp. 184-215]	
	[Duplicate]	
COUNC0346 / 7	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 10) - Public	02/19/1976
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Regional Hearing	
	(Transcript) [Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony), pp.	
	216-248] [Duplicate]	
COUNC0346 / 8	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 11) - Public	02/09/1976 to
	Hearing on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/19/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules: Regional Hearing	
	(Written Testimony) [Vol. 1 (public hearings: oral testimony),	
COLINICODAC / O	pp. 249-372] [Duplicate]	44 /04 /4055 :
COUNC0346 / 9	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 12) - Written	11/24/1975 to
	Testimony on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/03/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules (1 of 3) [Vol. 1	
COUNCO246 / 10	(written testimony), pp. 1-129] [Duplicate]	01/00/1076
COUNC0346 / 10	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 13) - Written	01/09/1976
	Testimony on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules (2 of 3) [Vol. 1	
	(written testimony), pp. 130-217] [Duplicate]	
-	(written testinony), pp. 130-21/] [Duplicate]	

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0346 / 11	Land Use Framework Plan Development (Folder 14) — Written	01/26/1976 to
	Testimony on Draft II of CRAG Goals and Objectives, Land Use	02/21/1976
	Framework Plan, and Implementing Rules (3 of 3) [Vol. 1 (written testimony), pp. 218-317] [Duplicate]	
COUNC0346 / 12	Land Use Framework Plan Development - Land Use	03/09/1976
0001100310 / 12	Framework Plan: Summary Report [copy 2]	03/07/1770
COUNC0346 / 13	Land Use Framework Plan Development - Land Use	03/09/1976
,	Framework Plan: Summary Report [copy 3]	, ,
COUNC0346 / 14	Land Use Framework Plan Development - Land Use	03/09/1976
	Framework Plan: Summary Report [copy 4]	
COUNC0346 / 15	Land Use Framework Plan Development - Land Use	03/09/1976
- COLINICOD 46 / 46	Framework Plan: Summary Report [copy 5]	00/44/4055
COUNC0346 / 16	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	02/11/1975
	75-001 - In the Matter of the Petition of the City Council of Medford, Oregon, to Review the Action of the Bear Creek Valley	
	Sanitary Authority Approving Construction of the South Medford	
	Trunk Sewers.	
COUNC0346 / 17	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	09/12/1975 to
,	75-002 - In the Matter of the Petition to Review Order No. 75-	04/19/1976
	417 of the Board of Commissioners of Clackamas County,	
	Oregon. South of Sunnyside Neighborhood League, Thomas M.	
	and Florence Baggs, Vance A. and Patricia J. Higdon, et. al.,	
	Oregon Environmental Council and the Northwest	
	Environmental Defense Center, and First Union Shopping	
	Centers Company, Petitioners. Board of Commissioners of Clackamas County, Respondent. Ernest W. Hahn, Inc., and Irwin	
	S. Adams, Intervener.	
COUNC0346 / 18	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	10/23/1975 to
,	75-003 - In the Matter of the Petition of Iris M. Felter and Paul	06/30/1976
	R. Meyer, et al., to review the Order of the City Council No. 1275	
	(PC 6227) of the City Council of the City of Portland, Petitioners.	
	Commissioners of the City of Portland, Respondents. Applicants	
COLINGODAC / 10	for Forest Park Estates, Interveners.	11 /10 /1076 .
COUNC0346 / 19	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	11/18/1976 to
	75-009 - In the Matter of the Petition to Review Zoning Ordinance No. 74-161-Z of the Board of County Commissioners	01/07/1977
	of Washington County, Oregon. City of Beaverton, Oregon,	
	Petitioner. The Board of Commissioners of Washington County,	
	Oregon, Respondent. Coe-Way Development Company,	
	Gordon Merrill and Richard T. Charlton, Interveners. 1000	
	Friends of Oregon, et al, Interveners. John H. Clough, Hearings	
	Officer.	_
COUNC0346 / 20	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	12/05/1975
	76-002 — In the Matter of: Court Order No. 75-1702 of the Board	07/02/1976
	of Commissioners of Clackamas County Approving a Zone	
	Change.	

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0346 / 21	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	09/30/1976
	76-015 — In the Matter of the Petition to Review Troutdale	
	Zoning Ordinance (#PC 76-12-1 and #PC-76-12-2) for Fuji	
	Subdivision adopted by Troutdale City Council on March 16, 1976. Carl E. Anderson, Petitioner; City of Troutdale, Respondent	
COUNC0346 / 22	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	03/20/1977 to
GOONGOS +0 / 22	76-016 — Glenn T. Althauser, Petitioner, v. Clackamas County	12/20/1977
	Board of Commissioners, Respondent.	12/20/17/7
COUNC0346 / 23	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	03/03/1977
0001100010 / 20	76-018 — In the Matter of the Petition to Review Amendment	00/00/17//
	M6-76 Zc 19-76 to the Comprehensive Plan of Multnomah	
	County adopted July 13, 1974. Rose Marie Gilbert, Petitioner.	
	Multnomah County Board of Commissioners, Respondent.	
	George Oldham, Intervener.	
COUNC0346 / 24	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	01/13/1978 to
	76-021 — In the Matter of the Adoption of Order No. 76-281 of	03/10/1978
	The Board of County Commissioners of Washington County on	
	October 26, 1976. 1000 Friends of Oregon, the assumed name	
	of Oregon Land Use Project, Inc., John Burris, Lorraine Burris,	
	Darlene Cain, Joames Cain, Edward Kohlmeyer, Phyllis	
	Kohlmeyer, Loretta Labahn, Lowell Labahn, Walter Labahn,	
	Beverly Rich, and James Rich, Petitioners. Board of County	
	Commissioners of Washington County, Respondent. City of	
	Sherwood, Intervener. Columbia Region Association of	
COLINGO 246 / 25	Governments, Intervener.	07/20/1077 +-
COUNC0346 / 25	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	07/28/1977 to
	77-004 — In the Matter of the adoption of the Land Use Element of the CRAG Region Plan. 1000 Friends of Oregon, the assumed	03/13/1978
	name of Oregon Land Use Project, Inc., the Oregon	
	Environmental Council, John Burris, Lorraine Burris, Loretta	
	Labahn, Walter Labahn, Marie Reeder, Bruce Weber, and	
	Virginia Weber, Petitioners. Columbia Region Association of	
	Governments, Respondent. Home Builders Association of	
	Metropolitan Portland, Inc., Intervener. Land Development and	
	Housing Resources Corporation, Intervener.	
COUNC0346 / 26	Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) No.	02/21/1978 to
,	77-006 - Rivergate Residence Association, Petitioners, v.	05/30/1978
	Portland Metropolitan Area Local Government Boundary	•
	Commission, Respondents.	_

3.03: Transportation

As the large number of meeting records from the various transportation advisory committees that functioned within CRAG indicates, transportation was a major area of work--and a major source of federal grant funding for the agency. In addition, transportation issues were the topic of a large number of technical studies many of which CRAG published towards the end of its lifespan.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0346 / 27	Technical Memorandum No. 2: Current Transportation Related	03/01/1978
	Air Quality Conditions in the CRAG Region	
COUNC0346 / 28	Technical Memorandum No. 3: Current Performance of The	04/01/1978
	Highway System in the CRAG Region	
COUNC0346 / 29	Technical Memorandum No. 13: The Inner Southeast Subarea:	06/01/1978
	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 30	Technical Memorandum No. 14: The Inner Southwest Subarea:	06/01/1978
	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 31	Technical Memorandum No. 15: The Inner West Subarea:	06/01/1978
	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 32	Technical Memorandum No. 16: The Northwest Subarea:	06/01/1978
-	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 33	Technical Memorandum No. 17: The Northeast Subarea:	06/01/1978
-	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 34	Technical Memorandum No. 18: The Outer North Subarea:	06/01/1978
	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 35	Technical Memorandum No. 19: The Outer East Subarea:	06/01/1978
-	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 36	Technical Memorandum No. 20: The Outer South Subarea:	06/01/1978
	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 37	Technical Memorandum No. 21: The Outer Southwest Subarea:	06/01/1978
_	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 38	Technical Memorandum No. 22: The Outer West Subarea:	06/01/1978
	Reference Guide to Travel Factors	
COUNC0346 / 39	Technical Memorandum No. 26: "Second Round" Regional	12/01/1978
	Growth Allocation for the CRAG Transportation Study Area Year	
COUNC0346 / 39	Patterns of Travel in Regional Corridors	12/11/1978 to
		12/28/1978
Oversized	The Cooperative Transportation Planning Process in the	01/01/1975
	Portland Metropolitan Area	

3.04: Criminal Justice

While the prospect of receiving federal grant money drove much of CRAG's engagement with the issue of criminal justice, the actual products of those attempts were few in number.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0347 / 1	Criminal Justice Committee	08/09/1973
COUNC0347 / 2	1979 District II Criminal Justice Plan	02/01/1978 to
		03/01/1978

3.05: Parks and Recreation

CRAG's engagement with the issue of parks and recreation appears limited to the extent that those issues affected its land use planning goals and objectives.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0347 / 3	The Urban Outdoors: A New Proposal for Parks and Open Spaces	06/30/1971
COUNC0347 / 4	Mary's Forest Park Site	11/1/1977

3.06: Fresh Water and Sewerage Management

Similar to its engagement with the issue of criminal justice, CRAG sought funding to conduct studies and bring about regional improvements in the areas of fresh water management and sewerage treatment. As far as the limited number of materials in the CRAG collection on these issues indicates, however, CRAG's success with having a deep effect in this area was relatively small.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0347 / 5	Sewage Districts and Government Studies, 1969	01/01/1963 to
		12/27/1968
COUNC0347 / 6	Water: A Resource You Can Help Restore	Undated
COUNC0347 / 7	Areawide Waste Treatment Management Study, Vol. 1	11/15/1977
COUNC0347 / 8	Areawide Waste Treatment Management Study, Technical	11/15/1977
	Supplement 2	
COUNC0347 / 9	Areawide Waste Treatment Management Study, Technical	11/15/1977
	Supplement 3	
COUNC0347 / 10	Areawide Waste Treatment Management Study, Technical	11/15/1977
	Supplement 9	
COUNC0347 / 11	Areawide Waste Treatment Management Study: Summary of the	11/01/1977
	Proposed Plan	
COUNC0347 / 12	Public Facilities and Services Element, Part I: Waste Treatment	03/01/1978 to
	Management Component, Text, Maps, and Rules	07/01/1978
Oversized	CRAG Water Plan	07/01/1969
Oversized	CRAG Drainage Plan	07/01/1969

3.07. Energy

As the energy issue grew in importance during the mid-1970s, CRAG responded with a handful of reports on energy production and consumption in the Portland area. The CRAG collection does not contain a prolific amount of materials on this issue, however.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0347 / 13	Summary: Critical Energy Issues for the CRAG Region	08/01/1976
COUNC0347 / 14	Energy Impact Review Procedure: CRAG Region Energy Analysis, Work-in-Progress, Report 4	02/01/1978

3.08. Creation of Metropolitan Service District

Contrasting with the policy-oriented and higher-level planning in which CRAG attempted to engage, the work of the Metropolitan Service District (MSD), created my means of Oregon voter approval in 1970, sought to provide as many concrete regional services as possible. While CRAG did not play a primary role in the creation of the MSD, it did have an interest in the agency and its work.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0347 / 15	Communications Regarding Creation of Metropolitan Service District, October-November 1969	11/12/1969
COUNC0347 / 16	Bills, Articles, and Correspondence Pertaining to CRAG and Metropolitan Service District	01/01/1969 to 07/31/1970

3.09. Miscellaneous Issues and Responsibilities

Documents, reports, publications, and other materials that do not fit neatly in the above sub-divisions are grouped below.

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0347 / 17	1969 Legislation Regarding Formation of Boundary	01/01/1960 to
		04/29/1969
COUNC0347 / 18	Area Development Technical Committee	03/19/1971
COUNC0347 / 19	Solid waste management projects in response to State House	11/13/1970 to
	Bill 1051 of 1971	08/09/1971
COUNC0347 / 20	Public Works Committee	02/13/1971 to
		02/13/1973
COUNC0347 / 21	Legislative Committee	04/06/1973
COUNC0347 / 22	911 Conceptual Design For the CRAG Area (Final Report: Vol. II,	05/01/1973
	Appendices)	
COUNC0347 / 23	Technical Memorandum No. 23: A Regional Employment,	04/01/1978
	Population, and Household Forecast for the Portland SMSA,	
	1975 - 2000	
COUNC0348 / 1	[duplicate meeting record folders]	
COUNC0348 / 2	[Collection of various land use documents from unknown	
	sources and for an unknown purpose]	

3.10. CRAG-MSD Merger

At the end of 1978, CRAG merged its planning and policy development operations with the service-oriented MSD after voters approved the combination in May of that year. [See above discussion of the history of CRAG for more on the CRAG-MSD merger]

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0349 / 1	Oregon Legislative Assembly — House Bill 2070	01/01/1960 to
		04/29/1969
COUNC0349 / 2	National Academy of Public Administration, "Four U.S. Reform	07/08/1977
	Efforts: Multi-tiered Metropolitan Government"	
COUNC0349 / 3	Ballot Measure 6 Brochures	01/01/1978

Box/Folder Nbr	Folder Description	Dates
COUNC0349 / 4	CRAG to Metro Service District Transition: News Clippings	03/05/1979 to
		12/01/1979
COUNC0349 / 5	CRAG to Metro Service District Transition: Internal Memos	06/07/1978 to
		06/08/1978
COUNC0349 / 6	MSD/CRAG Merger Information — Historical	01/30/1975 to
		01/19/1986
COUNC0349 / 7	Budget documents related to CRAG/MSD transition	05/01/1978 to
		11/20/1978
COUNC0349 / 8	Classification-Compensation and Personnel Systems Study	07/14/1978
COUNC0349 / 9	Consultant's Report on MSD/CRAG Merger of Personnel	10/03/1978
COUNC0349 / 10	Legal Review and Recommendations: Goals, Objectives,	9/29/1972 to
	Revisions	10/11/1978
COUNC0349 / 11	Report on Certain Aspects of the Merger of Accounting Systems	10/11/1978
COUNC0349 / 12	Report to the Management Regarding the Reorganization of the	10/11/1978
	Metropolitan Service District and Columbia Region Association	
	of Governments (Draft)	
COUNC0349 / 13	Report to the Management Regarding the Reorganization of the	10/11/1978
	Metropolitan Service District and Columbia Region Association	
201111200101111	of Governments	10/05/1050
COUNC0349 / 14	Various employee reactions to "Consultant's Report on	10/27/1978
	MSD/CRAG Merger of Personnel Systems"	10/05/1050
COUNC0349 / 15	Employee Review of "Consultant's Report on MSD/CRAG Merger	10/27/1978
00111100010 146	of Personnel Systems"	06/00/4070
COUNC0349 / 16	MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meeting (audio included)	06/28/1978
COUNC0349 / 17	MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meeting (audio included)	07/19/1978
COUNC0349 / 18	MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meeting (audio included)	08/02/1978
COUNC0349 / 19	MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meeting (audio included)	08/16/1978
COUNC0349 / 20	MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meeting (audio included)	08/24/1978
COUNC0349 / 21	MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meeting (audio included)	10/17/1978
COUNC0349 / 22	MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meeting	11/15/1978
COUNC0349 / 23	Audio Tapes of MSD/CRAG Transitional Committee Meetings	06/28/1978 to
		10/17/1978
COUNC0349 / 24	A Process for Defining the Regional Role in the Portland	12/01/1978
	Metropolitan Area	

Appendix A: Glossary of Acronyms

A list of acronyms appearing in the Columbia Region Association of Governments (CRAG) Collection was not prepared.

Appendix B: Library of Congress Subject Headings

Land use—Planning

Natural areas—Oregon

Appendix C: Sources for Background Information

The following sources proved very useful in the compilation of much of the background information located in this finding aid:

Abbott, Carl and Margery Post Abbott. "Historical Development of the Metropolitan Service District." May 1991.

Abbott, Carl. *Portland: Planning, Politics, and Growth in a Twentieth-Century City*. Lincoln: University of Nebraska Press, 1983.

Rich, A. McKay. Interviews. April 13 and May 4, 2007.